
AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, January 22, 2025 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Dave Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report
A. CEO Monthly Report

5. Presentation
A. Quarterly Financial Report (Webster)

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit - Austin
B. Board Affairs - Hillyer
C. Fiscal Affairs - Johnson
D. Investments - Johnson
E. Nominations & Elections – (Interim English)
F. Planning & Evaluation - Carden

7. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: November 13, 2024
2) BOD Work Session Minutes: January 8, 2025

B. Financial Statements:
1) November and December Financials

C. Board Business
1) Approve Chair Change for N&E from Barbara Blake to Candy English
2) N&E Recommendation to Extend Voting to March 18, 2025

8. Action Items
A. Board Affairs Committee Recommendation to Change Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Smoking and

Vaping Policy in Part 1: 1.2.6.K (Hillyer)
B. Amend CPM Part 1: 1.2.9.A Facility Fees (Somers)
C. Award Contract for Architectural Services for Lapidary Expansion (Somers) 

D. Fiscal Affairs Committee Recommendation for Approval for the Capital Improvement Program
Finance Policy Change in the CPM (Johnson)



9. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR member
number. This time is for comments, not for questions and answers.

10. Adjournment



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Scott Somers, CEO 

DATE: January 22, 2025 

RE: Monthly CEO Report 

Important Dates 
January 27, 2025, Record Date February 20, 2025, 4pm Candidate Forum 
February 13, 2025, 10am N&E Committee Mtg February 25, 2025, 5pm Candidate Forum 
February 18, 2025, 1:30pm FAC Meeting February 26, 2026, 2pm Regular Board Mtg 
February 19, 2025, 1pm Work Session February 26, 2026, Candidate Meet & Greet 

after Meeting 
February 19, 2025, Voting Begins 

TOTAL  2024

Center Description
 2024 Spent to 

Date 

NON RESERVE CAPITAL

ALL 2024 Unplanned Unbudgeted Items 100,000$       100,000$      -$                  -$  100,000$            
CR Shade Structure for Canoa Ranch po 16,000$          16,000$         -$                  -$  16,000$              

CP1 / ABS Deck shade structures for CP1 and A 26,000$          26,000$         -$                  -$  26,000$              
ALL Accessibility Initiatives 67,023$          50,000$         17,023$           -$  50,000$              
PBC Pickleball Fencing 35,000$          35,000$         -$                  -$  35,000$              
WC Vacuum System for Woodshop 90,000$          33,315$           21,168$              56,685$              

INITIATIVES

SRS Remodel for Glass Arts 900,000$       828,605$         (24,224)$             71,395$              
DH Desert Hills Fitness Center 1,127,744$    1,128,161$     -$  (417)$                   
DH DH Locker-room Expansion 299,355$       299,355$      40,117$           30,526$              259,238$            
DH Desert Hills Stage Removal 15,000$          15,000$         15,182$           15,182$              (182)$                   

DSCH Del Sol Clubhouse Note Payable 110,000$       11,000$         22,000$           11,000$              88,000$              
DSCH Del Sol Clubhouse Rennovation 1,900,000$    -$               1,740,455$     1,228,171$        159,545$            
WC West Center Expansion (Lap, Wood, 158,835$       100,000$      17,657$           3,699$                 141,178$            
DH Ceramics Kiln room 90,000$          90,000$         701$                 701$                    89,299$              
WC West Center Lobby improvements 150,000$       150,000$      3,125$             3,125$                 146,875$            
ALL Security Cameras 50,000$          -$               49,974$           49,974$              26$  
WC West Center Metal Arts home $150K budgeted in 2025 10,500$           10,500$              139,500$            

 Project Budget 
Balance 

GREEN VALLEY RECREATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS REPORT

12/31/2024
Project to Date

 Total Project 
Budget  2024 Budget 

 Total Project 
Spent to Date 

1

CEO Report 4.A



GVR Capital Improvement Projects Master List 1/15/2025

Project Name
Center 
Location Scope of Work

Est. 
Construct. 
Start

Est. 
Construct. 
Completion Status Next Steps Fu

nding 

Source
s

 Budget 

Total 
 Year T

o 

Date Sp
ent 

West Center Artisan Shop 
Expansion West Center

Expand the Artisan Shop into the old 
Billiards Room to be split 60/40 with 
Lapidary Club. April-25 June-25

Bidding in 
process Review and rank bids. Award contract. Initiative  $     -   

West Center Lapidary Club 
Expansion West Center

Expand Lapidary Club to the south and 
into old Billiards Room. 

September-25 March-26
Design-       SD 
0% Sign design contract once GVR BOD approves. Initiative  $     49,500 

West Center Membership 
Services Expansion West Center

Expand Membership Services offices in 
Auditorium lobby. Add lobby counters for 
events. April-25 July-25

Bidding in 
process Review and rank bids. Award contract. Initiative  $    150,000  $     12,300 

West Center Metal Shop 
Expansion West Center

Expand Metal Shop into west storage 
building. To become Welding, Machine 
Shop, Office. April-25 June-25

Bidding in 
process Review and rank bids. Award contract. Initiative  $    150,000  $     12,500 

Desert Hills Locker Room 
Expansion Desert Hills

Expand mens and womens locker rooms 
per plans.

May-25 October-25 Bidding soon Send out Invitation To Bid. Review and rank bids. Award contract.

MRR A 
145.6k 
Initiatives 
250k  $    395,000  $     46,300 

Desert Hills Pool 
Equipment Room 
Upgrades Desert Hills

Design and construct pool equipment 
room upgrades. No structural work.

June-25 July-25
Design-       SD 
0% Monitor design process. Respond to needed info.

MRR-B and 
MRR-B  $    1,651,539  $     15,500 

Desert Hills Kiln Room 
Enhancements Desert Hills

Strengthen sub-floor for 5 kilns and brick 
flooring. Upgrade ventilation system and 
electrical needs. August-25 August-25 Design-       SD Work to be included in Locker Room Renovation. Initiatives  $     90,000  $     2,700 

East Center Gas Manifold 
for Lapidary East Center

Intall new natural gas connection for 
Lapidry Club. Upgrade ventilation.

TBD TBD Planning
Coordinate with club representatives on scope of work and budget. 
Coordinate with CK Mechanical on plans. Initiatives  $     43,000  $     -   

Pickleball Courts 
Expansion

PKB Center 
and/or Canoa 
Ranch

Design and construct 4 new pickleball 
courts. No restroom or ramada. Club to 
pay for all. TBD TBD Planning

Get direction from club representatives and GVR administration on 
next steps.

Private club 
funds  TBD 

 $    991,524 

1 2



PRELIMINARY

3

Presentation 5.A



PRELIMINARY

4



PRELIMINARY

5



PRELIMINARY

6



PRELIMINARY

7



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, November 13, 2024 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor (Assistant 
Treasurer), Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Director Absent: Nancy Austin, Dave Barker 

Staff Present: Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster (CFO) 

Visitors: 11 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2:01pm MST. Secretary Carden called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Magliola seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report
• Thanked members for coming to the meeting.

4. CEO Report
• Del Sol Cubhouse: December 1 is possible soft opening, but not official. The members will

be notified when the opening happens through the eBlast.
• West Center Lobby Improvements: In the permitting process. This project would move

Membership Services to the West Center and expand the offices in the box office. A
recommendation for a contract will be brought to the Board for approval.

• West Center Metal Shop Expansion: 95% complete on construction documents with the
architects. Once construction documents are complete the permit process will begin, and
soon after that the project can go out for bid. A recommendation for a contract will be
brought to the Board for approval.

• West Center Artisan Shop: the billiard tables have been moved out of the West Center and
work has begun with the Artisan Shop to identify their needs. The wall between the
Artisan Shop and billiards room will be removed.

• Lapidary: scope of work developed for the architect to meet with the club which will result
in developing detailed construction documents, then permitting, after that assisting with
the bidding process, and overseeing the construction project as it moves forward.

8

Consent Agenda 7.A.1



• Pickleball Courts expansion: this is not a capital improvement plan, but will be funded by
the pickleball club as funds are raised. A simple MOU has been approved by the attorney
and will come before the Board at the January Regular Board meeting.

• Desert Hill Pool: a consultant has mapped the entire plumbing for the pool. A leak was not
found. Once the findings and recommendations are put together a report will be brought
to the Board and the membership. Hopeful the pool does not need replace and only needs
some plumbing repairs.

5. Committee Reports – All reports were verbally given and placed on file.
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

6. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Blake moved, Director Johnson seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: October 23, 2024

7. Action Items
A. Request Funding Agreement for Members Assistance Programs (MAP) from GVR

Foundation
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve to submit a
grant request to GVR Foundation in the amount of $25,000 for the next year ending
December 31, 2025, for the Member Assistance Program (MAP).
Passed: unanimous

B. Consider CPM Change for Allowing Dogs at Del Sol Clubhouse
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Dingman seconded to approve the revision
to CPM 1.2.6.H: “A standing exception to this policy exists at Del Sol Clubhouse where
dogs on fixed-length leashes (no flexi leashes) may be permitted in designated outdoor
areas. The GVR administration may occasionally create an exception to policy for a
specific GVR-sponsored event or program.”
Passed: unanimous

C. Approval of Finance Policy Recommendation from Fiscal Affairs
MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the Fiscal
Affairs Committee (FAC) recommended finance policies for inclusion in the Corporate
Policy Manual (CPM) as outlined in the Meeting Book and as discussed at the meeting.
Passed: unanimous

8. Member Comments - 0

9. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Garneau moved, Director Hillyer seconded to adjourn the meeting at
3:14pm.
Passed: unanimous

9



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, January 8, 2025, 2pm 
WC Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (arrived 2:18pm) (Vice President), Jim 
Carden (Secretary), Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor 
(Assistant Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Dave Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe 
Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster (CFO) 

Visitors: 7 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
Work Session Called to Order at 1:59pm by President Garneau. Secretary Carden called the
roll.

2. Amend / Approve Agenda
MOTION: Director Austin moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. Capital Improvement Program Finance Policy Recommendation from FAC
CEO Scott Somers provided the Fiscal Affairs Committee’s (FAC) recommendation for the
Capital Improvement Program – Finance Policy. Highlights include:

• The Board adopted the Capital Improvement Pilot Program (CIP) in September 2023
for a year of testing. Staff and Board learned throughout the year there were issues
and challenges with the Pilot program, and the CIP was brought before the FAC to
review and fine tune the process this year.

• Changes have been made to the Pilot Program and the staff requests to allow the
changes to the Capital Improvement Policy continue as a one-year pilot program. The
changes made from the last Pilot program include:

o Change Type 1 prior wording of budgeting $100,000 each year for projects to
state “each year when the budget allows.”

o Type 2 are long term Capital Improvement projects the staff recommends to
the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P&E) for recommendations to the
Board for consideration in the annual budget. Then the Board and staff
recommendations are brought to the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC). The FAC
develops funding recommendations on these projects. The staff presents the
P&E and FAC recommendations to the Board for approval.

• This provides a clear set of policies for staff, committees, clubs, and Board.
• The application will not be in the CPM, but available through staff. The Capital

Improvement Program policy will be in the CPM.

10

Consent Agenda 7.A.2



• The Miscellaneous paragraph has been added with the last sentence stating once a
project has been approved by the Board it will carry over from one year to the next
until completion. This provides clarity that anywhere in the project it cannot be shut
down by a new Board.

4. Corporate Policy Manual Change to Smoking/Vaping Policy
Director Hillyer explained that GVR has banned smoking for years in the buildings per the
Arizona Statute with the statement in the GVR Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) in Part 1:
1.2.6.K. GVR has decided to look at banning smoking on GVR properties.  There was an
overwhelming response to a survey of members at GVR to stop smoking/vaping on GVR
properties. The Board Affairs Committee discussed this at the November 12, 2024, meeting
and brings forth the recommendation to ban smoking and vaping on all GVR properties.

The Board discussed this with these highlights:
• Vaping is not in the Arizona State Statute referenced in CPM 1.2.6.K. The proposed

change to the CPM 1.2.6.K stated “Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.
36.601.01), GVR prohibits smoking/vaping in all GVR campuses” is not accurate. Vaping
is not included in the Smoke-Free Arizona Act.

• Suggestion was made to start smaller and have smokers or vapers stay in designated
areas and 20 feet from any GVR entrance.

• Currently GVR has few designated areas and not properly signed or equipped.
• If GVR designates areas the right equipment and signs need to be purchased.
• There have been complaints mainly from people on the sports courts of vaping.
• This will go before the Board at the Regular Meeting on January 22, 2025, and will

follow the BAC recommendation and may amend the motion.

5. Member Comments – 1 comment

6. Adjournment
Motion: Director Carden moved, Director Blake seconded to adjourn the meeting at 3:20pm.
Passed: unanimous

11



12

Consent Agenda 7.B.1



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

N&E Committee Chair Appointment 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: January 22, 2025 

Presented By: Marge Garneau, President Consent Agenda: Yes 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Nominations and Elections Committee (N&E) 

Action Requested: 
Appoint Candy English as Chair of N&E. Current Chair Barbara Blake has asked to step down. 

Strategic Plan: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the appointment of Candy English.
2) Pick another Board Director to serve the role.
3) Do not appoint another Director as Chair

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

20

Consent Agenda 7.C.1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

N&E Recommendation to Extend 2025 Voting 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: January 22, 2025 

Presented By: Candy English, Interim Chair Consent Agenda: Yes 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Nominations and Elections Committee (N&E) and Staff 
Action Requested: 
Approve N&E recommendation to extend the 2025 voting end date from March 13 to March 
18. 

Strategic Plan: 
Goal 3: Promote increased involvement of members in GVR  
Goal 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
Staff had requested the N&E Committee to consider recommending to the Board to extend 
the voting end date from March 13 to March 18 to allow more time for members to request 
paper ballots, Vote-Now to process the requests, and members to vote and return the 
requested paper ballots. At the N&E Committee meeting, it was approved to recommend to 
the Board this change. With this change, paper ballots can be requested from February 19 to 
February 23. Vote-Now will process the requests and send the ballots out by February 25 or 
26. Members will receive the paper ballots between March 3-6 and will have until March 10
to return them in the mail.

Fiscal Impact: 
No fiscal impact 

Board Options: 
1) Consider approval of the N&E recommendation to extend the 2025 voting period

from March 13 to March 18.
2) Consider approval of an amended N&E recommendation to extend the 2025 voting

period.
3) Do not approve the N&E recommendation and stay with the current voting end date

of March 13.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

21

Consent Agenda 7.C.2



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Corporate Policy Manual Change 
For Smoking/Vaping Policy 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: January 22, 2025 

Presented By: Bart Hillyer, BAC Chair Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Approve the Smoking and Vaping policy for the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) based on the 
recommendation from the BAC. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities. 

Background Justification: 
Due to comments from members regarding smoking and vaping in and around the facilities, 
the GVR staff asked members in the eBlast there opinion on the matter.  

Current policy 1.2.6.K: Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona Act (A.R.S.§36-601.01), GVR 
prohibits smoking in all indoor facilities and outside areas within 20 feet of entrances and 
windows. Smoking and vaping are allowed in designated outdoor areas only. 

The survey results: 2,751 people responded to a single query: "Per current GVR policy, 
members and guests are permitted to smoke and vape only in designated areas. Those 
designated areas currently have no fixtures. GVR needs to either equip designated smoking 
areas at each center (buy ashcans and benches) or decide it is time to go smoke and vape-
free. 2,441 (88.73%) respondents prefer GVR goes smoke and vape free. 310 (11.27%) 
respondents prefer GVR stick with designated smoking areas.  

The Board has asked the BAC for their recommendations on this issue and the BAC 
recommendation is for the Board of Directors to approve a ban on smoking and vaping 
throughout all GVR campuses. 

The Board held a Work Session on January 8, 2025, and the consensus, after reviewing the 
BAC recommendations and Board discussion, is to ban smoking on all GVR properties and to 
allow vaping, except within 20 feet of entrances and on sports courts.  

Fiscal Impact: 
Possible impact if GVR needs to provide ash cans and benches, or if GVR needs to provide 
signs stating no smoking or vaping. 

22

Action Item 8.A



Options: 
1) Approve the BAC recommendation to ban smoking/vaping on all GVR properties.
2) Approve the Board amended ban on smoking on all GVR properties, and allow vaping,

except within 20 feet of GVR entrances and on sports courts.
3) Delay decision to another meeting.

Staff Recommendations: 
Option #2 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve a smoking ban on all GVR properties, and allow vaping, except within 20 
feet of GVR entrances and on sports courts. 

Attachments: 
1) Redline and Clean CPM Part 1: 1.2.6.K

23



REDLINED 

K. Pursuant to the Smoke-Free Arizona GVR prohibits smoking in all indoor facilities and outside
areas within 20 feet of entrances and windows. Smoking and vaping are allowed in designated outdoor
areas only.  Smoking is prohibited on all GVR properties. Vaping is permitted, except within 20 feet of
GVR entrances and on sports courts.

CLEAN 

K. Smoking is prohibited on all GVR properties. Vaping is permitted, except within 20 feet of GVR
entrances and on sports courts.

24

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Finance Policy Recommendation
Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: January 22, 2025 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO       Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) and Staff 

Action Requested:  
Consider approval of the FAC recommended amendment to CPM Section 1.2.9 Rentals and 
Fees.  

Strategic Plan Goal: Goal 4: 
Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our members. 

Background Information:  
The Board approved FAC Finance Policy recommendations during the November 13, 2024, 
meeting. Staff inadvertently missed one section that should have been also included in the 
recommended changes.  

Section 1.1.1.A.2 provides that GVR Administration is authorized to establish and modify 
operational fees as described, including those listed in subsection b, Facility Fees. Whereas, 
Section 1.2.9.A describes how the CEO will implement a board approved fee schedule for 
rental of GVR facilities. These two provision are inconsistent with one another. Staff is 
therefore recommending the first sentence of subsection A be stricken as the attachment 
illustrates.  

Fiscal Impact: 
No cost associated with implementation 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the FAC recommended amendment to CPM Section 1.2.9 Rentals and Fees

as drafted.
2) Amend and then approve the FAC recommended amendment to CPM Section 1.2.9

Rentals and Fees as drafted.
3) Delay any decision at this time.

Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve the FAC recommended amendment to CPM Section 1.2.9 Rentals and Fees 
as drafted. 

Attachments: 
• Redlined CPM Facility Fees and Rentals and Fees Sections

25

Action Item 8.B



1 

1.1.1 Other Fees 

A. A fee for service is payment for the work involved in an

operation that benefits individual members, as distinct from the

entire membership. Cost recovery should be based on direct

costs, including personnel costs specifically related to delivering

the service.

1. The Board has established fees for services:
a. Transfer Fees: There shall be a charge for the

processing of the documents upon a change in the

title of a membership property.
b. Tenant Fees: Upon application, tenant cards shall

be issued to a person leasing GVR membership
property. There will be a charge for a tenant card.

2. The authority to establish and modify operational fees is
delegated to GVR Administration as part of the ongoing
day-to-day management of the organization. Such fees fall

in the following broad categories.
a. Programmatic Fees: These fees are established to

provide cost recovery of direct expenses related to
entertainment, participation, and instructional
programs.

b. Facility Fees: These fees are established to provide
cost recovery related exclusively to the use of facility

space and/or equipment by outside groups and
member usage beyond the basic services of GVR.
Such fees include, but are not limited to,

reservations, time incremental facility usage,
equipment, custodial, technician, and catering.

Damage deposits are required.
c. Administrative Fees: These fees are established to

provide cost recovery for miscellaneous services

provided to members and outside parties. Such fees
include but are not limited to, photocopying,

facsimile, computer, facility keys, card replacement
and publications.

d. Processing Fees: These fees are established to

provide cost recovery for labor and overhead
generated through business transaction to members

and outside parties. Such fees will be attached to all
transactional business including, but not limited to,
member dues, programs, instructional courses, and

rentals.

1.1.2 Member Payment Transactions 

Member payment transactions, such as Credit card transaction/service 
fees are subject to a processing fee. 

Style Definition: TOC 1

Style Definition: List Paragraph: Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.08 li, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.75" + Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Commented [SS1]: Inconsistent with 1.2.9.A since 
it says Board approves such facility fees. 
Recommend maintaining this language and 
amending 1.2.9.A 

26

Attachment 



2 

1.2.9 Rentals and Fees 

A. The CEO will implement a board-approved fee schedule for 

rental of GVR facilities. The CEO is authorized to waive facility 

rental fees in special circumstances, as deemed appropriate. 

B. Damage deposits, as identified in operational policy, will be

required for rentals by non-GVR members and may be required

for member use depending on the nature of the member

activity.

C. Members and groups composed solely of GVR Members are

granted up to six no-fee private events (potlucks, parties,

dances, HOA socials) per calendar year. These events may be

scheduled every other month. Subsequent or more frequent

private events will be subject to current rental fees. In all cases,

kitchen or grill cleaning fees may be charged. Reservations for

socials are limited to six hours.

1. Memorial and celebration of life services for GVR Members

or members of their immediate family are not subject to
rental fees and do not count toward the annual limit.

2. GVR Clubs are exempt from this annual limit.
D. GVR is interested in supporting community service events, and

may rent its facilities for such events whenever it is practical to

do so. A community service event is normally sponsored by a

non-profit organization or local government agency.

E. The CEO may authorize use of GVR facilities on a complimentary

or fee basis for any GVR-sponsored or GVR co-sponsored event

or activity.

F. Fees may be charged to recover the cost of any specialized

services, events or programs.

G. Commercial Rentals (rentals by businesses for the purpose of

conducting business) are not permitted.

Formatted: Left

Commented [SS2]: Inconsistent with 1.1.7.2.b. 
Recommend deleting 

Formatted: Left

27



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
West Center Clubs Expansion Project 

Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: January 22, 2025 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Facilities 

Action Requested: 
Award a contract for architectural services for the Lapidary Club expansion project 

Strategic Plan Goal 1: 
Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities  

Background Justification: 
During the September 25, 2024, Board meeting, the Board provided direction to pursue 
Option 1: expand the Lapidary Club space to the south first as a separate project from 
expanding the Woodworkers Club space to the east. Option 1 also includes expanding both 
Lapidary and the Artisans Clubs into the vacated Billiards room space.   

Since this concept was approved by the Board, next steps include completing construction 
documents. Since funds for completing construction documents are being paid from the 
Initiatives Funds, the Board must approve a contract with the architect who will complete the 
construction documents. Per the Procurement Policy, staff must attempt to acquire a 
minimum of three quotes/bids for this professional service. WSM, Seaver Franks, and Burton 
and Associates submitted bids for this project. Burton was the apparent low bidder and staff 
have been pleased with working with Burton on the Metal Arts expansion project. Staff 
therefore recommends awarding this contract to Burton and Associates in an amount of 
$49,500 for a base bid fee, with an allowance beyond the base bid of $4,500 for possible 
construction estimating services.  

Fiscal Impact: 
The 2025 Adopted Budget includes $991,524 from the Initiatives Fund in total for this 
project.  

Board Options: 
1) Award a contract to Burton and Associates for architectural services in an amount of

$49,500 for a base bid fee, with an allowance beyond the base bid of $4,500 for
possible construction estimating services.

2) Award a contract to a different contractor in a different amount.
3) Direct staff to rebid for architectural services.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

28

Action Item 8.C



Recommended Motion: 
I move to award a contract to Burton and Associates for architectural services in an amount 
of $49,500 for a base bid fee, with an allowance beyond the base bid of $4,500 for possible 
construction estimating services.  

Attachments: 
1) Bids for architectural services

29



30

Attachment 1



31

TimY
Highlight



December 13, 2024

Tom Fisher, Senior Project Manager
Green Valley Recreation, Inc.
1070 Calle de las Casitas
Green Valley, AZ 85614
tomf@gvrec.org

RE: RFP for West Center Lapidary Club Expansion 

Dear Mr. Fisher & Committee Members:

Thank you for inviting us to submit this proposal for Architectural and Engineering Services for the GVR Lapidary Center Expansion 
at 1111 GVR Drive at GVR’s West Center. in Green Valley, AZ.  We understand that the GVR board recently authorized the Green Valley 
Recreation Inc. (GVR) Board of Directors approved $991,000 in Capital projects funding for expansion of the West Center Lapidary Club 
building beginning in fiscal year 2025.  The proposed Lapidary Center project will increase the Club’s dedicated space with additions to 
the west as well as interior renovation into the adjacent former Billiards space.  At an anticipated 3,730 SF, the renovated and expanded 
Lapidary Center will serve GVR lapidary and silversmith artisans for years to come.

The remodel planning will take extensive communication with GVR members, committee members and Board members through  
multiple presentations, graphic and verbal communications. As WSM Architects, and now Shive-Hattery, we have many years of  
experience working with committees (whether corporate, non-profit or governmental agencies) and neighborhood consensus  
building.  Five WSM projects have been nominated for the Metropolitan Pima Alliance’s Common Ground Awards, which honor  
outstanding accomplishments in uniting communities through consensus-building.  Consensus-building can be a challenging process, 
but we relish it because it is rewarding to help our clients achieve their goals. Last month, we were selected by our local peers in the 
Design and Construction industry as the Cornerstone Building Foundation’s 2024 Architect of the Year.  We received this award not only 
for quality in design, but also for our high level of collaboration and teamwork.  

We have been working with Green Valley Recreation (GVR) since 2015 when we completed your 10-Year Strategic Master Plan.  At GVR, 
we interviewed over 60 clubs and sports groups as part of the Master Plan.  It was our job to listen, gather facts and apply resources ob-
jectively in a manner that brought success to individual club interests now, while also elevating the organization for the future success.  
We are familiar with the vision of the Lapidary Club, and have enjoyed working with them in the past on preliminary programming and 
design studies.  Our team is ready and available to begin work on this project in January 2025!   It would be exciting to be given 
the opportunity to move the West Center Lapidary Club Expansion to fruition!  

Please do not hesitate to call if you have questions or need additional information.  

Sincerely,

Kristen DiBone, AIA, NCIDQ
Principal Architect + Project Manager
4330 N. Campbell Ave | #268 | Tucson, AZ 85718
520.408.1044

32

Shive-Hattery (WSM Architects)



FEE BREAKDOWN
Project Architectural & Engineering Fees 

Basic Services: 
Shive-Hattery will provide the Basic Architectural and Engineering services, as described in this proposal and the RFP as follows: 

Optional Additional Services: 
Shive-Hattery will provide the Optional services, as described in this proposal, for the fixed fee of $172,375.00.  The fee breaks down as 
follows: 

The above fee includes architecture, interior design, structural engineering, mechanical engineering and electrical engineering.   

Exclusions: 
-Pima County Development Plan*, coordination of Owner’s Consultants, value engineering, permit or other municipal/utility fees, civil
and landscape site engineering, site surveying, soils engineering, acoustical engineer, commercial kitchen design, and low-voltage/au-
dio-visual design.

*The scope of Development Plan services required for this project can be accurately estimated upon the completion of Schematic Design. We 
can meet with the County at early phases to determine their requirements for adding additional building footprint to West Center

Hourly Rates: 
As requested in the RFP, please see next page for Shive-Hattery’s Hourly Fee Rate Schedule.

PROJECT 
PHASE  S

CH
EM

A
TI

C 
D

ES
IG

N
 

D
ES

IG
N

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 

D
O

CU
M

EN
T

 B
ID

D
IN

G
/P

ER
M

IT
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 
A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N

TO
TA

L 
BA

SI
C 

SE
RV

IC
ES

RE
IM

BU
RS

A
LE

 
A

LL
O

W
A

N
CE

G
EO

TE
CH

N
IC

A
L 

RE
PO

RT
 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

CE

CO
ST

 E
ST

IM
A

TI
N

G
A

LL
O

W
A

N
CE

TO
TA

L 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
SE

RV
IC

ES

TOTALS $11,050.00 $18,400.00 $31,200.00 $7,000.00 $14,400.00 $82,050.00 $1,000.00 $8,000.00 $10,000.00 $19,000.00

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL SERVICES

PCI-GVR Lapidary.xlsxProj. Fee Worksheet ORIGINAL 

PROJECT 
PHASE  S

CH
EM

A
TI

C 
D

ES
IG

N

D
ES

IG
N

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
D

O
CU

M
EN

T

 B
ID

D
IN

G
/P

ER
M

IT
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

TO
TA

L 
BA

SI
C 

SE
RV

IC
ES

RE
IM

BU
RS

A
LE

 
A

LL
O

W
A

N
CE

G
EO

TE
CH

N
IC

A
L 

RE
PO

RT
 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

CE

CO
ST

 E
ST

IM
A

TI
N

G
 

A
LL

O
W

A
N

CE

TO
TA

L 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
SE

RV
IC

ES

TOTALS $11,050.00 $18,400.00 $31,200.00 $7,000.00 $14,400.00 $82,050.00 $1,000.00 $8,000.00 $10,000.00 $19,000.00

BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES OPTIONAL ADDITIONAL SERVICES

PCI-GVR Lapidary.xlsxProj. Fee Worksheet ORIGINAL 

33

TimY
Highlight



Tom Fisher, Senior Project Manager and 
Tim Yelaca, Project Manager

RE: Architectural Design Services

December 13, 2024

Dear Tom and Tim,

We are pleased to submit our qualifi cations and experience for the architectural 
design services required for the West Center Lapidary Club Expansion. SEAVER 
FRANKS ARCHITECTS is excited about the prospect of partnering with you on this 
important project.

Our team, led by Senior Project Architect Rick Huch and Project Coordinator 
Fatima Valdez, has a proven track record in designing inspiring spaces for 
community social clubs. We understand the unique needs of your members and 
are committed to creating a design that fosters creativity, collaboration, and a 
sense of community.

We are confi dent in our ability to navigate the complexities of this project, 
addressing issues such as budget, constructability, schedule, quality control, and 
future maintenance. Our goal is to deliver a design that not only meets your needs 
but exceeds your expectations.

We are available to begin work immediately and are committed to working within 
your schedule. We would welcome the opportunity to discuss your project in more 
detail and learn how we can best serve your needs.

Sincerely,

SEAVER FRANKS ARCHITECTS, INC., A.I.A.

Richard Huch, R.A., LEED-AP
Sr. Project Architect
rickhuch@seaverfranks.com
(520) 237-1470

2552 N ALVERNON WAY  |  TUCSON, AZ  85712  |  P (520) 795-4000|F (520) 795-9431

34



Mr. Scott Sommers 

Dec. 12, 2024 

Page 4 

Civil Engineering 

A. Design Survey Fixed fee of $3,200.00 

B. Private Paving, Grading and Drainage Plan Fixed fee of $6,700.00 

C. Project Meetings and Coordination Fixed fee of $2,000.00 

D. Traffic Memorandum Fixed fee of $1,200.00 

E. Engineer of Record Services Fixed fee of $3,500.00 

F. Easement Coordination and Processing Hourly as required 

Existing Building As- Builts Fixed fee of $1,500.00 

Programming & Schematic Design Fixed fee of $8,100.00 

Design Development Fixed fee of $8,200.00 

Construction Documentation Fixed fee of $50,700.00 

Construction Administration Hourly as required 

TOTAL FIXED FEE SERVICES (not including hourly services) $85,100.00 

The above fees are valid for 12 months from the date of acceptance. Any work begun after this date shall be 

renegotiated by both parties to a mutually agreeable amount. 

SCHEDULE 

SFA anticipates the following schedule: 

Programming & Schematic design- 4 to 6 weeks (As-Builts to be completed during that time) 

Design Development- 4 weeks 

Construction Documents- 10 weeks 

Permitting- 10 weeks 

Please note- all civil work to run parallel with the work above and anticipate completion within this time frame. 

HOURLY SERVICES 

All services provided on an hourly basis will be billed at the following rates: 

SEAVER FRANKS ARCHITECTS: 

Principal $225.00/hour 

Sr. Project Architect $150.00/hour 

Project Architect  $125.00/hour 

Project Manager  $110.00/hour 

BIM Modeler $105.00/hour 

Project Coordinator $105.00/hour 

Draftsman $95.00/hour 

Clerical / Permit Expeditor $75.00/hour 

Intern $55.00/ hour 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

Please see the attached terms and conditions. 

Scott, I am very interested in working with you on this project and am pleased to submit this proposal to you. Please let 

me know if the working relationship described above is acceptable to you.  If it is, please sign and return a copy for 

my file along with a retainer check for $6,700.00. 

35

TimY
Highlight



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget
Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO        Meeting Date: January 22, 2025  
Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO    Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Department: 
Administration and Finance 

Action Requested: 
Consider approval of the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) recommended draft Capital 
Improvement Program and Capital Budget Policy for inclusion into the CPM.  

Strategic Plan Goal #4: 
Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our members 

Background Information: 
On September 27, 2023, the Board of Directors approved a Capital Improvement Project 
Policy and Process pilot program (please see attached staff report and exhibits). Based on 
feedback from Board members and staff who have applied and utilized the pilot program to 
develop the 2024 and 2025 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and budgets, staff have made 
recommendations that fine tune and improve the pilot program that was approved in 2023. 
These recommended amendments attempt to incorporate a Board-approved goal for the 
CEO in 2024 and were applied when developing the 2025 CIP and Capital Budget as follows:  

(Capital) Include usage, trade-offs, and justification as part of the annual budget and 
capital planning process to provide the Board of Directors (BOD) with the necessary 
information to make capital planning decisions. 

On November 19, 2024, the FAC recommended the Board of Directors consider approving 
the attached draft Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget Policy for inclusion into 
the CPM.  

Fiscal Impact: 
No direct fiscal impact. 

Options: 
1) Consider approval of the FAC recommended Capital Improvement Program and

Capital Budget Policy.
2) Consider approval of the amended FAC recommended Capital Improvement Program

and Capital Budget Policy.
3) Delay discussion to a future meeting.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

36

Action Item 8.D



Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve the FAC recommended Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget 
Policy as drafted.  

Attachments: 
1) September 27, 2023, staff report and attachments
2) Redlined GVR Capital Improvement Project Policy and Process pilot program
3) Recommended clean Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget Policy
4) Pilot Capital Improvement Project Assessment tool
5) Recommended updated Capital Improvement Project Assessment tool

37



Attachment 1

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Page 1 of 5 

GVR Capital Improvement Project PolicyProgram and Process 

Definition 

D. Capital improvement project: Any equipment or other fixed

asset costing $5,000 or more and with a useful life of greater

than one year.Budget

1. The Capital Budget is the annual appropriations for capital

projects and acquisitions, which are approved by the 

Board of Directors. A Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

is a forecast of major capital projects over a selected 

period of time. If a capital project remains a high priority, 

it is eventually placed in the Capital Budget for funding 

approval by the Board. The first year of the Capital 

Improvement Program becomes the basis for the Capital 

Budget. Both shall be prepared and adopted as part of 

the annual budget process. Board approval of the Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) indicates not only the 

Board’s acceptance of the CIP, but also its recognition 

that the document represents the general direction that 

the organization plans to take in meeting future capital 

needs.  

2. Preliminary planning and design for a capital project,
excluding Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Reserve 

Fund (MRR-A only) projects, since they are addressed 
separately, typically occurs before the project is 
approved; the cost for this work is usually charged to the 

appropriate fund, but may be charged to the Operations 
Fund. If the project is approved, the preliminary planning 

and design costs for it may be charged to the project, 
with the project budget reimbursing the fund to which the 
work was originally charged. If a project is not approved, 

the cost of the preliminary planning and design for it are 
absorbed by the fund originally charged.   

1.3. Policy and Process 

The Board of Directors, advisory committees, and staff 

consider any master plans, needs assessments, feasibility 
studies, the strategic plan, member surveys, etc. when 

assessing and prioritizing projects.  

1. Staff develops the recommended Five-Year Capital

53

Attachment 2



Page 2 of 5 

Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital Improvement 
Budget (the first year of the CIP, including estimated 
costs). However, any member in good standing may 
submit a proposal for a capital improvement project. 

There are two paths to fund capital improvement 
projects:  

Type I: CURRENT YEAR UNPLANNED/UNBUDGETED 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - Each year, when 

the budget allows, GVR will earmark $100,000an 

identified amount in the Non-Reserve Capital Budget 
solely for the purpose of funding unplanned and 

unbudgeted non-reserve capital improvement projects. 

Funding and inception of these projects begin in the 
current year. These projects tend to be smaller in scope 
and do not generally require much planning or lead time. 

Proposal rounds for these funds open twice each year, 
given funds remain available for Round 2. 

Round 1: January 1, with funding allocated and 
scheduled April 1 
Round 2: June 1, with funding allocated and scheduled 

September 1 

Staff provides an initial review by following the listed 
process:  

1. Does the proposed project meet the definition of a
capital improvement project? See Part 5, Section 1,
Subsection 5.1.1. If yes, then proceed to #2.

2. Is the proposed project:
i. unplanned and unbudgeted?

ii. under an estimated cost of $50,000?

iii. anticipated to begin in current year?

iv. not included in the MRR Reserve study?

v. not a club responsibility per the CPM and

Club Agreement?

If all questions can be answered in the affirmative, 

the proposal may qualify as a Type I capital 
improvement project. Proceed to Assessment 

Phase.  

Type II: FUTURE AND LONG-TERM CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - Each year, GVR staff will 
develop a recommended Five-Year Capital Improvement 

Plan (CIP) and Capital Improvement Budget accordingly 

for such capital improvement projects from capital 

reserve funds and capital non-reserve funds. Funding and 
inception of these projects begin in subsequent years. 

54



Page 3 of 5 

These projects tend to be larger in scope and require 
significant planning.    

Staff provides an initial review by following the listed 

process:  
1. Does the proposed project meet the definition of a

capital improvement project? See Part 5, Section 1,

Subsection 5.1.1. If yes, then proceed to #2.

2. Is the proposed project:

i. unplanned and unbudgeted?

ii. anticipated to begin in a future year?

iii. not a club responsibility per the CPM and

Club Agreement?

If all questions can be answered in the affirmative, 
the proposal may qualify as a Type II capital 

improvement project. Proceed to Assessment 
Phase.  

Assessment Phase 

Staff completes the Capital Improvement Project 
Assessment (include in Appendix or approved by the 

Board annually?) for all completed and timely 
applications. 

Score <7 The proposal will not be considered at this time. Notify source 

party. 
Score =>7 Follow Type I or Type II steps below for all other proposals.  

The following apply only to Type I Capital 

Improvement Projects:  

1. Staff evaluates proposals and notifies the Board of

Directors of the approved project proposals.

Project(s) moves forward with no further review or

approval required.

2. If funding is left over after round one, members will

be invited to apply again for round two (opening

June 1 each year) and all steps will be repeated.

The following apply only to Type II Capital 
Improvement Projects:  

1. Upon annual staff reassessmentassessment and

recommendation of projects and plans, Staff

55



Page 4 of 5 

presents the recommended Five-Year Capital 

Improvement Plan (CIP) to the Planning and 

Evaluation Committee (P&E). The P&E Committee 

recommendsdevelops a recommendation of the 

Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to the 

Board of Directors for consideration during the 

annual budget approval process.  

2. Staff presents the recommended Five-Year Capital

Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital

Improvement Budget to the Fiscal Affairs

Committee (FAC). The FAC recommendsdevelops

funding recommendations of the Five-Year Capital

Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital

Improvement Budget to the Board of Directors

during the annual budget approval process.

3. Staff presents the P & E and FAC recommendations

to the Board of Directors, and notes any

discrepancies between the two committees and/or

with staff recommendations, of the Five-Year

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital

Improvement Budget to the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors considers approval of the

Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and

Capital Improvement Budget as part of the annual

budget approval process.

Project Planning 

1. Begins in January of the project inception year.

2. Staff conducts member/user groups outreach, if

necessary.

3. If necessary, staff works with an architect to

develop high-level concept drawings and cost

estimates.

4. Staff presents any concept drawings and associated

cost estimates to the Board of Directors for

approval.

5. If rejected, staff repeats steps 3 and 4 until a

concept is approved by the Board of Directors, or

56



Page 5 of 5 

until the Board of Directors provides alternative 

direction.  

6. Once and if approved, Staff pursues construction

documents and permits and goes out for bid per

policy.

7. Staff reviews bids or proposals and brings a

recommendation to the Board of Directors for

consideration.

8. Board of Directors awards a contract.

4. Prioritizing
1. Project prioritization is based on the following:

Experience based judgment – based on the 

judgement of professional staff, governing board 
members, committee members, members, etc.  

2. Broad categories of need
a. High: projects that are essential and

impending 

b. Medium: essential but do not need to be
funded immediately 

c. Low: create benefit but not enough to merit
inclusion. 

5. Miscellaneous
Financial forecasting shall be utilized when developing the 

CIP to ensure a financially sound program.  
Estimated costs shall include but not be limited to 
inflation, planning and architectural fees, legal fees, and 

permitting. Estimated project timelines and anticipated 
funding sources shall be identified. Funding for approved 

or in-progress capital projects carry over from one year to 
the next until completion.  

57



D. Capital Improvement Program and Capital Budget
1. The Capital Budget is the annual appropriations for capital

projects and acquisitions, which are approved by the
Board of Directors. A Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
is a forecast of major capital projects over a selected
period of time. If a capital project remains a high priority,
it is eventually placed in the Capital Budget for funding
approval by the Board. The first year of the Capital
Improvement Program becomes the basis for the Capital
Budget. Both shall be prepared and adopted as part of
the annual budget process. Board approval of the Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) indicates not only the
Board’s acceptance of the CIP, but also its recognition
that the document represents the general direction that
the organization plans to take in meeting future capital
needs.

2. Preliminary planning and design for a capital project,
excluding Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Reserve
Fund (MRR-A only) projects, since they are addressed
separately, typically occurs before the project is
approved; the cost for this work is usually charged to the
appropriate fund, but may be charged to the Operations
Fund. If the project is approved, the preliminary planning
and design costs for it may be charged to the project,
with the project budget reimbursing the fund to which the
work was originally charged. If a project is not approved,
the cost of the preliminary planning and design for it are
absorbed by the fund originally charged.

3. Policy and Process
The Board of Directors, advisory committees, and staff
consider any master plans, needs assessments, feasibility
studies, the strategic plan, member surveys, etc. when
assessing and prioritizing projects.

Staff develops the recommended Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital Budget (the first
year of the CIP, including estimated costs). However, any
member in good standing may submit a proposal for a
capital improvement project. There are two paths to fund
capital improvement projects:

Type I: CURRENT YEAR UNPLANNED/UNBUDGETED
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - Each year, when
the budget allows, GVR will earmark an identified amount
in the Non-Reserve Capital Budget for the purpose of

58

Attachment 3



funding unplanned and unbudgeted non-reserve capital 
improvement projects. Funding and inception of these 
projects begin in the current year. These projects tend to 
be smaller in scope and do not generally require much 
planning or lead time. Proposal rounds for these funds 
open twice each year, given funds remain available for 
Round 2. 

Round 1: January 1, with funding allocated and 
scheduled April 1 
Round 2: June 1, with funding allocated and scheduled 
September 1 

Staff provides an initial review by following the listed 
process:  

1. Does the proposed project meet the definition of a
capital improvement project? See Part 5, Section 1,
Subsection 5.1.1. If yes, then proceed to #2.
2. Is the proposed project:

i. unplanned and unbudgeted?
ii. under an estimated cost of $50,000?
iii. anticipated to begin in current year?
iv. not included in the MRR Reserve study?
v. not a club responsibility per the CPM and

Club Agreement?
If all questions can be answered in the affirmative, 
the proposal may qualify as a Type I capital 
improvement project. Proceed to Assessment 
Phase.  

Type II: FUTURE AND LONG-TERM CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - Each year, GVR staff will 
develop a recommended Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) and Capital Budget accordingly for such capital 
improvement projects from capital reserve funds and 
capital non-reserve funds. Funding and inception of these 
projects begin in subsequent years. These projects tend 
to be larger in scope and require significant planning.    

Staff provides an initial review by following the listed 
process:  

1. Does the proposed project meet the definition of a
capital improvement project? See Part 5, Section 1,
Subsection 5.1.1. If yes, then proceed to #2.

2. Is the proposed project:
i. unplanned and unbudgeted?
ii. anticipated to begin in a future year?

59



iii. not a club responsibility per the CPM and
Club Agreement?

If all questions can be answered in the affirmative, 
the proposal may qualify as a Type II capital 
improvement project. Proceed to Assessment 
Phase.  

Assessment Phase 

Staff completes the Capital Improvement Project 
Assessment (include in Appendix or approved by the 
Board annually?) for all completed and timely 
applications. 

The following apply only to Type I Capital 
Improvement Projects:  

1. Staff evaluates proposals and notifies the Board of
Directors of the approved project proposals.
Project(s) moves forward with no further review or
approval required.

2. If funding is left over after round one, members will
be invited to apply again for round two (opening
June 1 each year) and all steps will be repeated.

The following apply only to Type II Capital 
Improvement Projects:  

1. Upon annual staff assessment and recommendation
of projects and plans, Staff presents the
recommended Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) to the Planning and Evaluation Committee
(P&E). The P&E Committee develops a
recommendation of the Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) to the Board of Directors
for consideration during the annual budget
approval process.

2. Staff presents the recommended Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital
Improvement Budget to the Fiscal Affairs
Committee (FAC). The FAC develops funding
recommendations of the Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Capital Budget to

60



the Board of Directors during the annual budget 
approval process.  

3. Staff presents the P & E and FAC recommendations
to the Board of Directors, and notes any
discrepancies with staff recommendations, of the
Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and the
Capital Budget. The Board of Directors considers
approval of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) and Capital Budget as part of the annual
budget approval process.

Project Planning 

1. Begins in January of the project inception year.

2. Staff conducts member/user groups outreach, if
necessary.

3. If necessary, staff works with an architect to
develop high-level concept drawings and cost
estimates.

4. Staff presents any concept drawings and associated
cost estimates to the Board of Directors for
approval.

5. If rejected, staff repeats steps 3 and 4 until a
concept is approved by the Board of Directors, or
until the Board of Directors provides alternative
direction.

6. Once and if approved, Staff pursues construction
documents and permits and goes out for bid per
policy.

7. Staff reviews bids or proposals and brings a
recommendation to the Board of Directors for
consideration.

8. Board of Directors awards a contract.

4. Prioritizing
1. Project prioritization is based on the following:

61



Experience based judgment – based on the 
judgement of professional staff, governing board 
members, committee members, members, etc.  

2. Broad categories of need
a. High: projects that are essential and

impending
b. Medium: essential but do not need to be

funded immediately
c. Low: create benefit but not enough to merit

inclusion.

5. Miscellaneous
Financial forecasting shall be utilized when developing the
CIP to ensure a financially sound program.
Estimated costs should include inflation, planning and
architectural fees, legal fees, permitting, etc. Estimated
project timelines and anticipated funding sources should
be identified. Carryover funds for capital projects from
one year are put into the next year’s budget and
approved again by the Board of Directors.

62



Attachment 4

63



64



Attachment 5

65



66



67


	Monthly Report December.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	FROM:  Scott Somers, CEO

	Monthly Report December.pdf
	MEMORANDUM
	FROM:  Scott Somers, CEO




